
AMENDED 
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
APRIL 4, 2016 

          MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

March 21, 2016, Regular meeting 
March 21, 2016, CRA meeting 
March 30, 2016, Special Meeting 

 
3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
Recognition of Fire Fighter Joe Moorehead 

 
4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   

     
Ordinance No. 03-16  Amending Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinances and Section 

9(b) of the City's Charter pertaining to deadline for qualification 
of candidates 

    (SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

Resolution No. 09-16  Request that the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning 
Organization recommends that the Florida Department of 
Transportation conduct a Project Development and 
Environmental study regarding the replacement of the State Road 
399 overpass. 

        
5. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Approval of Special Event Application for the Gulf Breeze Elementary School Run on April 13, 
2016.  
 

B. Authorization for Ken Horne and Associates to provide engineering services for a paving project 
on Berry, Driftwood, Montrose, and Navy Cove. 
 

C. Authorization to request a revision in the West Florida Regional Planning Council rules 
concerning municipal representation.   
 

D. Endorsement of the preparation of conceptual plans for a waterfront park on Navy Cove. 
 



E. Approval to pay invoices 95651 and 95652 for a total amount of $1,425.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, 
Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard P.A.  
 

F. Approval to pay invoice 327702 in the amount of $25,404.00 to 
Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith. 
 

G. Approval of a new employment agreement between the City of Gulf Breeze and Ed Gray. 
 

H. Appointment of Beverly Zimmern and Chris Kemp to the Capital Trust Agency Board of 
Directors. 

  
I. Appointment of Mr. Tracy Goodson, Mr. Curtis Odom, Ms. Kristan Loera and Mr. John 

McDonald and Councilwoman Cherry Fitch to the Tourist Development Advisory Committee. 
 

J. Authorization to Purchase and/or Repurpose Parking Meters for Charitable purposes in line with 
the "Better Way to Give" Program to aid the Escarosa Coalition for the Homeless 

 
*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 
6. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
 
A. Authorization to obtain Request for Proposals from landscape design firms to prepare conceptual 

landscape plans for projects funded by the donation from the Jo Nutt Estate. 
 

 
7. NEW ITEMS  
 
8. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
9. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this 
meeting or public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The 
public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition 
from the Chair.   If you are a person with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate 
in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City 
Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to 
the date of the public hearing. 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular Council Minutes                           March 21, 2016 Page 1 
 

The 1,292nd Regular Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Monday, March 21, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, and Mayor Matt 
Dannheisser. Councilman David G. Landfair was not in attendance. 
 
The City Clerk gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the minutes of the March 7, 2016, Regular Meeting.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the minutes of the March 7, 2016, Community 
Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors Meeting.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The 
vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
PRESENTATION AND PROCLAMATIONS: 
  
Chief of Police Robert Randle introduced Officer Patrick Pulley and recognized Officer Pulley's 
dedication to protect and serve the citizens of the City of Gulf Breeze.  Chief Randle also stated 
that Officer Pulley was instrumental in preventing a male subject from jumping from the 
Pensacola Bay Bridge in an attempted to commit suicide.   
 
RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   
 
Public Hearing 
 

Ordinance No. 02-16  Amending Section 24-51 of the Code of Ordinances as it 
 pertains to off-street automobile parking and storage 
 

    (SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

The City Clerk read the Ordinance by title.  The Mayor opened the Public Hearing.  Having 
received no comments, Mayor Dannheisser closed the Public Hearing.    
 
Councilwoman Bookout moved for approval of Ordinance No. 02-16. Councilwoman Fitch 
second.  The vote for approval was unanimous 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular Council Minutes                           March 21, 2016 Page 2 
 

 Ordinance No. 03-16  Amending Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinance and Section 
 9(b) of the City's Charter pertaining to deadline for qualification 
 of candidates   

       (FIRST READING) 
 

Resolution No. 8-16  Approving a budget for the expenditure of Tourist 
Development Taxes for Fiscal Year 2016  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson moved for approval of Resolution No. 08-16.  Councilwoman Fitch 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S): 
 

A. Authorization to place blue bows on the City's reader board, two "Gulf Breeze" signs, and 
trees located in the median, during the month of April in recognition of Child Abuse 
Awareness Month 
 

 Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated February 26, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council recognize April as Child Abuse Awareness 
Month and allow the Gulf Coast Kids House to install bows within the median of 
Highway 98, as described.   
 

B. Approval of a revised Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County regarding tourist 
development taxes 
 

 Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 10, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the revised Interlocal Agreement 
with Santa Rosa County regarding tourist development taxes as presented.   
 

C. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 
 

George Gamble and Matthew Gamble 
400 Navy Cove Boulevard 
Request to replace a dock and seawall  
 
Mable Holton, As Trustee 
17 North Sunset Boulevard 
Request to construct a new seawall 

 
Reference: March 8, 2016, Development Review Board Minutes 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular Council Minutes                           March 21, 2016 Page 3 
 

D. Authorization for Rueben Surveying and Mapping to perform survey work associated 
with the police facilities needs assessment in the amount of $4,675 
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 10, 2016 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council accept the proposal for survey work 
associated with five City owned properties from Rueben Surveying and Mapping of Gulf 
Breeze for a cost of $4,675.   
 

E. Authorization to purchase twelve APX 1000 radios from Motorola at a cost of $24,900 
for the Public Services Department 
 
Reference: Director of Public Services and Senior Service Worker memo dated March 
  11, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the purchase of 12 APX 1000 
radios from Motorola for $24,900.00 with funding allocated as listed in the above 
referenced memo.   
  

F. Authorization for a change order for Utility Service Co. for asphalt milling and 1.5" 
overlay for Center Street, Russ Drive, and Nightingale Lane 

 
Reference:  City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize a change order to Utility Service Co. 
for asphalt milling and 1.5" overlay for the Northern Section Stormwater Project as 
illustrated for $60,088.   
 
(This item will be funded through the Community Redevelopment Agency.  Approval was 
made during the Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors meeting on 
March 21, 2016.) 
 

G. Approval to adjust the Waste Transfer Station fees 
 

Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 8, 2016 
 

Council's contention was that City resident rates remain the same ($10.00 per truck load), 
increase nonresident rates to $35.00/truck load and commercial rates to $60.00/truck 
load.   

  
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve consent agenda items A through G.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular Council Minutes                           March 21, 2016 Page 4 
 

 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS:     
 

A. Approval to replace residential karts with dumpsters on Stearns Street, construct two 
dumpster enclosures, maintain the current fee structure and earmark monthly savings for 
twenty-three months in order to recoup capital costs 
 

 Reference: Code Enforcement Officer Craig Chamberlain memo dated March 9, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the construction of dumpster 
enclosures and authorize the replacement of karts with dumpsters on Stearns Street.  The 
project is to be financed by maintaining the current fee structure and withholding the 
monthly savings for twenty-three months.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve Staff recommendation with a rate of $17.00 per 
month to the customer as opposed to $19.00 per month.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The 
vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
B. Approval of a retainer agreement with Mesimer and Associates with regards to the 

Pensacola Bay Bridge eminent domain case   
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 
 
This item was tabled until the next set of meetings.   
 

C. Consideration of a nonresident tennis fee 
 

Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated March 9, 2016 
 
Recommendation: Upon direction from Council to proceed with the implementation 
of user fee structure for City tennis courts, recommendation is for utilization of the 
proposed fee structure, implemented through Option 1, as outlined in the above 
referenced memo.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson stated that he believes nonresidents that use the tennis facility 
should pay a fee to use the courts to cover the cost of upkeep and maintenance of the 
courts. 
 
J.B. Schluter, 485 Deer Point Drive, would like to find a way to offset the maintenance 
cost deficient instead of creating a gated tennis facility.   He offered to be part of a 
committee to come up with a solution.   



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular Council Minutes                           March 21, 2016 Page 5 
 

 
Nina Cobia, 1128 Tall Pine Drive, stated that she supports Mr. Schluter's ideas.   She 
wants to find a way to keep the courts open for everyone to use. 
 
Councilwoman Bookout suggested that we create a program for the students in the After 
School Program to take tennis lessons to be funded by a donation from the Ladies Tennis 
League in lieu of an increase of fees.   
 
There was no motion received on this item.  
 

NEW BUSINESS:  None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS:    
 
The City Manager announced that the Deputy City Manager, Curt Carver, will be retiring 
effective November 2016.    Staff will advertise for the position with hopes to someone hired by 
the end of summer to work with Mr. Carver during the budget process.  
 
PUBLIC FORUM:    None  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS:    
 
Councilwoman Fitch thanked City staff for their hard work during the Rotary Gumbo Cook-off.   
  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m.  
 
 
 

    
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk    Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

CRA Board of Directors Minutes  March 21, 2016 Page 1 
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors for the Community Redevelopment Agency, Gulf Breeze, 
Florida, was convened at the Gulf Breeze City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, March 21, 
2016, at 7:01 p.m.   
 
The following members were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry 
Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser.  Councilman David G. 
Landfair was not in attendance. 
    
The purpose of the meeting was for the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency to consider the following:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM:* 
 

A. Authorization for Kenneth Horne & Associates, Inc., to complete a design concept for the 
realignment of Live Oak Street at Gulf Breeze Parkway in an amount not to exceed $4,800 
 
Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated March 11, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on Monday, March 21, 2016, and authorize Kenneth 
Horne & Associates, Inc., to complete the design concept for the realignment of Live Oak 
Street at Gulf Breeze Parkway for an amount not to exceed $4,800.00. 
 

Councilman Fitch made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item A.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 

ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A. Authorization for a change order for Utility Service Co. for asphalt milling and 1.5" overlay 
for Center Street, Russ Drive, and Nightingale Lane  

 
Reference:  City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council, as the Community Redevelopment Agency 
Board of Directors, authorize a change order to Utility Service Co. for asphalt milling and 
1.5" overlay for the Northern Section Stormwater Project as illustrated for $60,088.   
 
This item was approved during the March 21, 2016, Regular Meeting.  The City Manager 
recommends that the City Council authorize $60,088 from Community Redevelopment 
Agency funding for the street resurfacing change order as the streets are located within the 
CRA district.   

 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

CRA Board of Directors Minutes  March 21, 2016 Page 2 
 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve the City Manager's recommendation.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:  None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
    
       
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Special Meeting Minutes                           March 30, 2016 Page 1 
 

A Special Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at Gulf 
Breeze City Hall on Wednesday, March 30, 2016, at 6:55 p.m. (Note:  The Special  meeting was 
held prior to the Executive Session meeting of the same date.  Following the Special Meeting, the 
Executive Session was commenced.)   
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Bookout, 
Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Councilman David G. 
Landfair, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser.   
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 

A.   Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation 
 

Applicant:  NNGS, LLC 
   c/o Rodney Sutton 
Address:  120 E. Main Street, Suite A 

Pensacola, FL 32502 
Project Location:  15 Daniel Drive, Gulf Breeze, FL  
Description:   New Medical Office Building (Sacred Heart) 

 

Rodney Sutton with NNGS, LLC, applicant for the project, addressed the Council.  Mr. Sutton 
presented the project and answered questions.  Jason Rebol, with Rebol-Battle, the design 
engineer for the project, was also present and answered questions regarding the project. 

Councilman Landfair requested that the proposed wall for the project be changed to mirror the 
fence/columns of the school walls. Mr. Sutton advised that such a change would be difficult at 
this stage in the project due to increase in costs and other issues.    

Councilman Landfair made a motion to table the item until there is more time to review plans 
with the wall.  The motion died due to lack of a second.   

Mayor Dannheisser requested Mr. Sutton make a commitment to give the City property rights 
should the City, at its own expense, choose to put a public amenity more extensive than 
contemplated by the owner in the front of the building.  Mr. Sutton made the commitment and 
advised they would stub out the area for electricity and plumbing.  

 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE                                                                       
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Special Meeting Minutes                           March 30, 2016 Page 2 
 

Councilwoman Bookout expressed concern with the use of trees and shrubs on the property that 
backs up to the field house and kids cutting through those areas.  Councilwoman Fitch also 
expressed concern regarding this issue.   Mr. Sutton advised the use of reverse engineering to 
help address those issues once particular paths are established.   

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve the project as is with the caveat that changes to 
the fence be made at a later date.  The motion died due to lack of a second. 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson moved to approve the project as recommended by the Architecture 
Review Board and the Development Review Board.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded. The vote to 
approve the project was 3-2 with Councilwoman Bookout and Councilman Landfair dissenting. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM: 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the special meeting at 7:50 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

   
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor   



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 1 
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on 
Wednesday, March 30, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Mayor Matt 
Dannheisser and Councilman David G. Landfair.       
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:   

Mr. John Johnson with the EscaRosa Coalition on the Homeless and Josh Newby with LeaP 
Pensacola attended the Council meeting to explain the “A Better Way to Give” program. 

Mayor Dannheisser requested that the Council consider placing a few parking meters in the City 
to support the program.  

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion approving: the purchase and repurpose of several parking 
meters; staff to coordinate with LeaP for the appropriate signage to be placed on each meter; 
installation of two meters at City Hall and the Community Center and one meter at the Chamber 
building; coordinate with volunteer staff to periodically service the meters, and allow each meter 
to be sponsored by a local business for an appropriate fee to go to the coalition. Councilwoman 
Bookout seconded the motion.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

Danny Brothers, Principal of Gulf Breeze High School, indicated that students at the school 
would be willing to participate in the program by volunteering to paint the meters and help 
landscape around each meter. Mayor Dannheisser volunteered to donate money to help purchase 
the meters.   

  

ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Approval of Ordinance 03-16 pertaining to the qualification deadline for candidates, 
amending the City's Charter, Section 9(b), and the City's Code of Ordinances, Section 2-
1, at Public Hearing and Second Reading. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 03-16 on Second 
Reading and Public Hearing on April 4, 2016. Councilwoman Fitch seconded. The vote 
for approval was unanimous.   
 
Councilman Landfair requested that an incumbent be required to declare their intention of 
running for office at least five business days prior to qualifying. The City Attorney will 
research the legality of Councilman Landfair’s request and provide more information by 
the next council meeting. 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 2 
 

 
B. Approval of Special Event Application for the Gulf Breeze Elementary School Run on 

April 13, 2016.  
 
Reference: Deputy Chief of Police memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the Special Event Application. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 
4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

C. Authorization for Ken Horne and Associates to provide engineering services for a paving 
and drainage project on Berry, Driftwood, Montrose, and Navy Cove. 
 
Reference: Director of Public Services memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize Ken Horne and Associates to provide 
engineering services for the paving and drainage project for Berry, Driftwood, Montrose, 
and Navy Cove. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser requested that staff contact the various Homeowners Associations in 
regards to their willingness to do a Special Assessment to pave their private roads and 
adding those roads to the City’s paving schedule. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

D. Authorization to obtain Request for Proposals from landscape design firms to prepare 
conceptual landscape plans for projects funded by the donation from the Jo Nutt Estate. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council direct staff to prepare a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for a landscape design firm to: 1) Prepare Conceptual Plans for 
extension of landscaping beds from the intersection of Daniel Drive to the east; 2) 
Prepare Conceptual Plans for landscaping plans at business frontage locations; 3) Present 
conceptual plans to the local Garden Clubs for input; and 4) Preparation of plans and 
specifications for a final plan for both to be bid;  
  
 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 3 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 
4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser requested that the Council be provided with copy of the current 
Ordinance(s) regarding maintenance requirements of vacant lots.  
 

E. Authorization to request a revision in the West Florida Regional Planning Council rules 
concerning municipal representation.   
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council pass a motion requesting that Section 
1.003(d) be revised allowing the voting representative of a municipal member be either 
an elected or appointed official appointed by the City Council or Commission. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for 
approval was unanimous. 
 

F. Adoption of a Resolution requesting the Florida Department of Transportation to conduct 
a PD&E study regarding the replacement of the State Road 399 overpass. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That a Resolution be prepared for adoption Monday, April 4, 
2015, requesting the local Transportation Planning Organization to ask the Florida 
Department of Transportation to conduct a Project Development and Environmental 
study for the replacement of the State Road 399 overpass.  
 
Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

G. Endorsement of the preparation of conceptual plans for a waterfront park on Navy Cove. 
 

Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council endorse the preparation of conceptual plans 
for a waterfront park on Navy Cove Boulevard at Gilmore Bayou for potential submittal 
for a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) grant. 
  
Councilwoman Bookout requested that staff notify the residents of the conceptual plans.   
 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 4 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 
4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 

 
H. Approval to pay invoices 95651 and 95652 for a total amount of $1,425.00 to Smolker, 

Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard P.A. and that the City Council meet as the Board of 
Directors of the CRA and authorize the payment of invoice 95653 in the amount of 
$150.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard P.A. 

 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated March 18, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve payment of invoices 95651 and 95652 for a total amount 
of $1,425.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. and that the City 
Council meet as the Board of Directors of the CRA and authorize the payment of invoice 
95653 in the amount of $150.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda and CRA meeting agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
I. Approval to pay invoice 327702 in the amount of $25,404.00 to 

Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS). 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve payment of invoice 327702 in the amount of $25,404.00 to 
Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS). 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 
4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

J. Approval of a new employment agreement between the City of Gulf Breeze and Ed Gray. 
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve the employment agreement with Ed Gray as presented. 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 5 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

K. Appointment of Beverly Zimmern and Chris Kemp to the Capital Trust Agency Board. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council appoint Beverly Zimmern and Chris Kemp as members of the 
Board of the Capital Trust Agency. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 
4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 

NEW ITEMS      
 

A. Appointment of Tourist Development Advisory Committee members 
  
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council appoint Mr. Tracy Goodson, Mr. Curtis 
Odom, Mrs. Kristen Loera and Mr. John McDonald to the Tourist Development Advisory 
Committee. 

 
Mayor Dannheisser requested an amendment to the recommendation adding 
Councilwoman Fitch as a member on the Advisory Committee 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation with the 
amendment on the April 4, 2016, Regular meeting agenda. Councilman Landfair 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS  

Mayor Dannheisser advised the Council that the Capital Trust Agency will be scheduling 
a workshop for the City Council and the CTA Board of Directors in mid-May.   
 

 

 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES                       MARCH 30, 2016 Page 6 
 

 PUBLIC FORUM   

 Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue, expressed his appreciation of the consideration of a 
waterfront park on Navy Cove Boulevard at Gilmore Bayou.  Mr. Turpin questioned the process 
in which the City will develop the conceptual plan and how the public will be able to provide 
input and receive information regarding the plan. Mr. Turpin advised there are steel posts starting 
to rust at the bottom of the Shoreline Park pavilions.    

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
 Councilwoman Bookout requested the Council re-visit the City’s code in regards to the 
Architectural Design Styles at the April 23rd informal workshop. 
 

Councilwoman Fitch expressed the same sentiments.  She would like to possibly change 
or add another design element such as Florida Vernacular.   

 
 Mayor Pro Tem Henderson expressed his concern regarding the creation of more traffic 

due to the pace in which the City is building.   
 

Councilman Landfair advised he attended the monthly meeting of the GBSA and they 
plan to build batting cages behind the softball field.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 




















	April 4  2016 Regular Meeting
	MARCH 21 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	MARCH 21 2016 CRA MEETING MINUTES
	March 30 2016  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
	March 30, 2016 Executive and Special Meeting Minutes
	Firefighter Recognition
	Ord 03 16 
	Resolution 09-16
	Use of Jo Nutt Estate Funds

